
AGENDA 
 

CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
May 1, 2024-5:30 P.M. 

 
FRANCIS J. McLAUGHLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call:  Quorum is Present - Meeting is in Session. 
 
4. Proclamations & Presentations.   
      
5. Approval of Minutes. 
 
6. Reading of Communications. 
 
7. Reports of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, 

Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
8. Public questions from residents (or representative) related to the above referenced reports. Questions 

may be limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
9. Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council. 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS 
  Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 

representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 
representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
A. An Ordinance Authorizing Contract Modification Number 3 with MS Consultants, Inc to 

the 2024 Basic Engineering Services Agreement.  

 

Description: This is Contract Modification #3 to the General Engineering Contract for 

MS Consultants, Inc.  This Modification is for the Colonial Plaza Lift Station Generator 

Project in the amount of $3,795.00 

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance. 

 

Attachment(s): Modification No. 3, Scope of Services  

  

 

B. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase A Western Star Dump Truck, 

Dump Body and a Snowplow and Salt Spreader.   

 

Description: The city is buying a Western Star Dump Truck and Dump Body from T.S.I. 

Truck and Equipment Sales and we are buying the Snowplow and Salt Spreader from 

Gledhill Road Machinery.   The cost of the dump truck and dump body is $113,037.00 

and the cost of the snowplow and salt spreader is $84,406.54.  This was in the budget for 

2024 and purchased through State Purchasing.   

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance  

 



Attachment(s): Specifications for the truck, snowplow and salt spreader.  

 

C. An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Property and Authorizing its Disposal and Declaring 

an Emergency.   

 

Description: When it is determined that certain vehicles or equipment are no longer 

useful to, or needed by the City, Council must declare the items(s) as surplus and 

authorize the disposal of the items. This item is being sold to the Mahoning County 

Sheriff’s Department.  

 

Action Needed: Approval of Ordinance  

 

Attachment(s):  Specifications for the vehicle and the plow and spreader. 

 

D. A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Apply for, Accept, and Enter Into A 

Water Pollution Control Loan Fund (WPCLF) or Water Supply Revolving Loan Account 

(WSRLA) Agreement on Behalf of the City of Canfield for Planning and Construction of 

Wastewater or Water Facilities; and Designating A Dedicated Repayment Source for the 

Loan.   

 

Description: The loan is for work on the Hilltop Water Tower.  

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Resolution  

 

Attachment(s):   

 

E. A Motion to Authorize the City Manager to Apply for F-1 and F-2 Permits as Applicable 

from the Ohio Department of Commerce/Division of Liquor Control for Family Fun 

Night on September 19, 2024 and Fall Fest on October 5, 2024. 

 

Description:  Ohio Revised Code Section 4303.20 dictates how F-type (beer, wine, 

liquor) permits are treated in the State of Ohio. F-Permits are temporary and are utilized 

for special functions and can be issued to the City of Canfield. 

 

The Ohio Department of Commerce/Division of Liquor Control issues temporary Type 

“F” Permits to certain non-profits, including cities to allow for this type of activity. The 

City of Canfield has previously hosted events in which an F-1 Permit was obtained.  This 

motion authorizes the City Manager to apply for F-1 (Beer only) or F-2 (Beer and Wine) 

permits for the upcoming September 19, 2024 Family Fun Night and the Fall Fest on 

October 5, 2024.   

 

Action Needed: Approval of Motion 

 

Attachment(s): Motion. 

 

F. A Motion Changing the Dates of City Council Meetings for the Months of July and 

August Pursuant to Section 3.09 of the Charter of the City of Canfield.  

 

Description:  Pursuant to Section 3.09 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, “regular 

meetings must be held twice each calendar month, except during the months of July and 

August, the Council may dispense with one of its regular meetings.”  

 

This Motion sets the date and time of the authorized one (1) meeting for the months of 

July and August. We are recommending July 17th and August 14th for the scheduled 

meetings.  

 

Action Needed: Approve of Motion 

 

Attachment(s):  None.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



G. A Motion Authorizing the Sale of a 2019 Chevrolet Tahoe to a Political Subdivision of 

the State.   

 

Description: The Mahoning County Sheriff’s Department is in need of a K-9 vehicle.  

Canfield wishes to sell the 2019 Tahoe to them for $25,000.  This does not have to go to 

Auction or be bid because they are a political subdivision of the state according to ORC 

505.10. 

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Motion  

 

Attachment(s):  Motion and Letter from Mahoning County Sheriff’s Department.  

 

 

12. Council Comments.  

 

13. Adjournment 



Introduced by: ________________ 
First Reading: _________________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CONTRACT MODIFICATION NUMBER 3 WITH 
MS CONSULTANTS, INC TO THE 2024 BASIC ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Canfield authorized the City Manager to enter into a 
contract with MS Consultants, Inc. on November 15, 2023 for General Engineering Services; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Engineer recommends a Contract Modification Number 
3, pursuant to section 1 and 4 of the contract; and 

WHEREAS, this modification is for the development of bid solicitation documents, bidding 
services, and contract document preparation in accordance with Ohio EPA, WPCLF requirements; and 

WHEREAS, Council desires to authorize Contract Modification Number 3 for the City of 
Canfield, Colonial Plaza Lift Station Generator Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1:  Contract Modification Number 3 is hereby authorized in an amount of $3,795.00 
pursuant to the description and scope of work attached.   

Section 2: That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code 
and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________________DAY OF ________________________A.D. 2024. 

_____________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 

Certification of Publication 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for seven 
continuous days, to-wit: _____________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________. 

_______________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 











Introduced By: ___________________ 

First Reading: ____________________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO PURCHASE A WESTERN STAR  DUMP TRUCK, 

 DUMP BODY AND A SNOWPLOW AND SALT SPREADER. 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has requested the purchase of a dump 

truck, 9’ Dump Body, 11’ and a snow plow and salt spreader; and 

WHEREAS, Council desires to purchase the dump truck,  dump body and a 

snowplow and salt spreader through the ODOT State Purchasing.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase a Western Star 

dump truck,  dump body and a snow plow and salt spreader  through the ODOT State 

Purchasing (T.S.I Truck and Equipment Sales for the cab & chassis and Gledhill Road 

Machinery for snow plow and salt spreader). 

Section 2:  The total cost of the purchases shall not exceed $197,443.54. 

Section 3:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 

Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio 

Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________ DAY OF ________________________ A.D., 2024.

____________________________ 

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

Certification of Publication 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio 

for seven continuous days, to-wit: ____________________________________________ 

______________________________________. 

_____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________________ 

MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 









































Introduced by: ______________ 
First Reading: ________________ 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING SURPLUS PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISPOSAL AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that certain vehicles are no longer 
needed by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council desires to declare the following vehicle surplus and dispose of it.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1:  The following vehicle and accessories are hereby declared surplus: 
 

2019 Chevrolet Tahoe Vin#1GNSKAKC3KR150660 

 
Section 2:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to dispose of the listed vehicle in 
accordance with the applicable City of Canfield Ordinances. 
 
Section 3:  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the preservation of public peace, health and safety of the inhabitants of 
the City of Canfield, Ohio. Said emergency exits by reason of the urgent need of the 
Sheriff’s Department.    
 
Section 4:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 
of the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________DAY OF ____________________A.D. 2024. 
 
      ___________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 

seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________. 

       ______________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
____________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY  



Introduced by: ______________ 
First Reading: _______________ 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO  
APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND ENTER INTO A WATER POLLUTION 

CONTROL LOAN FUND (WPCLF) OR WATER SUPPLY REVOLVING 
LOAN ACCOUNT (WSRLA) AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY

OF CANFIELD FOR PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
WASTEWATER OR WATER FACILITIES; AND DESIGNATING A DEDICATED 

REPAYMENT SOURCE FOR THE LOAN 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield seeks to upgrade its existing water facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield intends to apply for Water Pollution Control Loan Fund 
(WRCLF) or Water Supply Revolving Loan Account (WSRLA) for the planning and 
construction of the wastewater or water facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Water Pollution Control Loan Fund (WRCLF) or Water Supply Revolving 
Loan Account (WSRLA) requires the government authority to pass legislation for application 
of a loan and the executive of an agreement as well as designating a dedicated repayment 
source:  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to apply for a WPCLF or 
WSRLA loan, sign all documents for and enter into a Water Pollution Control Loan Fund 
(WPCLF) or Water Supply Revolving Loan Account (WSRLA) with the Ohio Environmental 
Protection Agency and the Ohio Water Development Authority for planning and construction 
of a wastewater or water facilities on behalf of the City of Canfield, Ohio. 

Section 2:  That the dedicated source of repayment will be water user fees. 

Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law.   

Section 4:  That this Resolution and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Resolution were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS__________DAY OF _________________________, 2024. 

_____________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

___________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 



Certification of Publication 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 
the foregoing Resolution was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, 
Canfield, Ohio for seven continuous days, to wit:_______________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________. 
 
       ____________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
 
 



Introduced by:________________      Motion No._________ 
 
                MOTION TO AUTHORIZE  

THE CITY MANAGER TO APPLY FOR 
F-1 AND F-2 PERMITS AS APPLICABLE FROM  

THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE/ 
DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL FOR  

FAMILY FUN NIGHT ON SEPTEMBER 19, 2024 AND 
FALL FEST ON OCTOBER 5, 2024 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Canfield would like to conduct events on the Village Green 
from time to time where beer would be available for purchase; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ohio law provides for the issuance of Temporary Permits for the sale of beer for such 
events, and 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT MOVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD; 

 
 

Section 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to apply for an F-1 (Beer only) and F-
2 (Beer & Spirituous liquor) as applicable Permits from the Ohio Department of 
Commerce/Division of Liquor Control for the Family Fun Night on September 19, 2024 and Fall 
Fest on October 5, 2024. 
 
Section 2. That this Motion and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Motion 
were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 
 

 PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _______Day of _____________________A.D., 2024. 
 
      
        _____________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio hereby certify that the 
foregoing Motion was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 
seven continuous days, to-wit: _________________________________ 
_______________________________________. 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 



Introduced by: ________________    Motion No._____________ 
 

MOTION 
 

A MOTION CHANGING DATES OF THE COUNCIL 
MEETINGS FOR THE MONTHS OF JULY AND AUGUST, 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.09 OF THE CHARTER 
OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD 

 
 WHEREAS, Council is authorized to have one (1) meeting per month during July and 
August, pursuant to Section 3.09 of the Charter of the City of Canfield; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council deems it desirable to operate under this curtailed schedule for these 
months. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1.  The meeting for July shall be held on July 17, 2024. The Caucus shall begin at 
5:30 P.M. with the meeting to convene at the conclusion of the Caucus. 
 
 Section 2.  The meeting for August shall be held on August 14, 2024 The Caucus shall 
begin at 5:30 P.M. with the meeting to convene at the conclusion of the Caucus. 
 
 Section 3:  That this Motion and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Motion 
were held in open meetings of this Council all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ___________DAY OF ________________________A. D, 2024. 
       _________________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 
Certification of Publication 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Motion was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 
seven continuous days, to-wit: _____________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
       ______________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 



Introduced by: __________________ Motion No._______________ 

A MOTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF A 2019 CHEVROLET 
TAHOE TO A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield has declared a 2019 Chevrolet Tahoe as surplus; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield wishes to sell the Vehicle to the Mahoning County 
Sheriff’s Department; and 

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code 505.10 states that if the property is conveyed to another 
political subdivision of the state, no public auction is necessary.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MOVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1: that a 2019 Chevy Tahoe Vin #1GNSKAKC3K150660 be sold to the Mahoning 
County Sheriff’s Department for $25,000.00.   

Section 2: That this Motion and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Motion 
were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS __________DAY OF _____________A.D., 2024. 

__________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  

Certification of Publication 

I, the undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio hereby certify that the 
foregoing Motion was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 
seven continuous days, to-wit: ___________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________. 

______________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 



1 
 

MINUTES 
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 17, 2024 -5:30 P.M. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Mrs. Oliver, President of Council, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows: Mr. 
Dragish, Mr. Graham, Mr. Neff, Mrs. Oliver and Mr. Tieche.  
 
Staff present: Christine Stack-Clayton, Finance Director; Jodi Flinn, Zoning Inspector; and John 
Rapp, Public Works Superintendent.  
 
Absent: Charles Colucci, Chief of Police.  
 
  Under PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS, there were none.  
 
  Under APPROVAL OF MINUTES, the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on April 3, 
2024 were approved as presented.  
 
  Under READING OF COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
MR. TIECHE: I have none.  
 
MR. NEFF:  I had a resident, take me to task for what he considered not having all the facts on 
our position on the Fire merger.  I said, “We’re still open to listening to any new facts that come 
up.” That was my answer.  We made that decision because we felt that a very high percentage 
of our citizens were not interested. That’s all I have.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I have nothing.  
 
MR. GRAHAM:  I have nothing.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: The only thing that I had was the same thing, a resident questioning why we 
made our decision.  We stand by our decision. At this point, it’s not going to change, unless 
other facts or anything come forward.  We haven’t received any at this point.  
 
  Under READING OF REPORTS of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City 
Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
MR. TIECHE: I do not have a report this evening our meeting will be next month.  
 
MR. NEFF:  Planning & Zoning meets tomorrow night, so I don’t have a report.  
 



2 
 

MR. DRAGISH: I have the Mayor’s Monthly Statement to Council.  Monies received and who 
they were paid to and from, the net collections to the city was $1,021.01.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: I have no report this evening.  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  I’m on the Fire Board and our meeting is not until Monday.  It’s next Monday at 
5:30pm, if anybody is interested in attending.  Our Public Works Superintendent, Mr. Rapp.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  Good evening. Yarian is still working on Briarcliff and 
Bradford. They’re into the restoration, taking advantage of the good weather. They were 
actually working as of 4:30 when I left that street.  Our crews are out landscaping, mulching, 
you probably see them at the park and up here at the city building. We usually spend about a 
week to a week and a half on that, getting everything ready for spring.  We’ve even started 
mowing.  Limb and Stick, we were in zone 3 this week. We’ll finish that up at the end of the 
week and we’ll begin zone 4 on Monday.  If you have any questions regarding rules and 
regulations or if your street is included in that zone, it’s all on the city website.  We will also be 
beginning lead & copper samples soon, I believe the 29th, right Patty?   
 
CLERK: Right.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  We appreciate all the participants. A couple of years ago, 
they upped our lead and copper samples. They did it everybody, Niles, everybody that was fed 
from MVSD. We’re at 40 samples every 6 months.  We only had like 30 participants and now we 
just added like 30 more.  We appreciate everybody’s cooperation in getting the samples and 
leaving them on the doorstep for us.  Also, we dropped the clock off to Mr. Oliver, he’s going to 
start digging into that thing and it sounds like a hefty task but it seems like he’s ready to do it.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: He already started.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: That’s all I have.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Since you mentioned the city website, I would ask Mr. D’Apolito, if 
you could elaborate on that, since you’ve had some questions on social media reading the 
website. Thank you.  Our Finance Director, Mrs. Clayton,  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Utility Online Bill Payment is currently unavailable. We’ve got in on our 
website and we put it out on social media today.  Payments can be made at the municipal 
building during regular business hours or 24/7, there is a drop box in the lobby of the police 
department.  We’ve starting moving all of the data from utility billing to the new software 
today.  Tomorrow, we’ll start proofing the bills that are produced out of the new software and 
we’ll have to verify all of the customer information in the new software, once they populate all 
of that in.  We’re doing billings out of our current software and out of the new software and 
we’re going to compare them. If anybody sees any errors in the next couple of months, please 



3 
 

contact us, as soon as possible, so that we can get it fixed. Hopefully, I’ll have the online bill 
payment up, as soon as we get all of that verified, in the new software.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Our Zoning Inspector, Mrs. Flinn.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: Thank you, Mrs. Oliver.  For the month of April, we issued 2 beekeeping 
permits, 4 garage sale permits, 7 zoning permits totaling $215.00 for a valuation of $34,746.00.  
Total permits issued for the year is 38, for a valuation of $963,263.  I have an update on a 
couple of projects, big one’s that people have been asking about.  We’re waiting on a 
resubmittal of the site plans for the Hercules Car Wash.  I did issue a permit for work to begin at 
the old IGA building, we’re waiting on them to pick them up.  The last thing, on Monday, I’ll be 
going out to Millennial Moments for a sanitary inspection and this is on their second home of 
the year.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Do we know where the beekeeping permits were issued for?   
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: I don’t have the addresses but it was on Main and Broad, maybe.  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  Our City Clerk, Mrs. Bernat.   
 
CLERK: Thank you.  The Concerts on the Green schedule is finalized.  It is available on our 
website.  The concerts start June 10th and they run through August 19th, from 7:00pm to 
8:30pm.  This evening, the Civil Service Commission is administering the test for the Patrol 
Officer position; we had 7 applicants.  That’s all I have.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  Chief Colucci is not here.  We’ll go onto our City Manager, Mr. 
D’Apolito.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO:  Thank you, Mrs. Oliver.  On behalf of the Chief, he’s been off the last couple of 
days, on vacation. He wanted everyone to know that we will be meeting on Friday, the police 
department and some of the city hall staff, to set up the schedule for the city/police events, 
such as Movie Night, Safety Day, and Christmas in July. We’re going to get that going again for 
this summer. We’ll have those dates and times finalized.   
 
I also want to take a minute to recognize Sam Oliver for his willingness to volunteer to get the 
clock restored. I know his work, he’s incredibly talented.  I’m looking forward to see how the 
clock turns out.  I was also going to mention that it was delivered by Public Works to his shop 
on Tuesday.   
 
Something that is important to a lot of people and we get many phone calls about Route 224 
and Main Street, the patching job on the asphalt.  We’ve been dealing with this for some time.  
We have had some very good negotiations with Lindy.  I hope to have some resolution for 
council in the next week or so.  I think we’re going to get a really good result.  I offered 
something that is a little different and I think they’re receptive.   



4 
 

 
Finally, in regards to the city website. That is something that has caught my attention, since 
before I started here.  It definitely needs a lot of updating. It definitely needs to have the links 
attached to it, as to where to go.  The third-party vendor that we deal with here, I’ve been 
meeting with them multiple times, almost by-weekly.  Our bill has been reduced greatly from 
where they started, when I first got here.  I didn’t think we were getting what we were paying 
for.  They’ve been great about working with us.  Ultimately, we’ll decide whether it’s going to 
be done in-house or a third-party vendor. Just to let everyone know, it’s on my radar, it has 
been since I got here.  Everything, everybody thinks about the website is correct.  We’re trying 
to make it a complete change.  It will look very different in a short time.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  I will say, that clock is a lot larger in person.  I thought the top of the 
clock was coming and it’s all one piece.  It’s definitely large and heavy but I know he has good 
things planned to do to it, it’s going to be beautiful.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I was going to say something about him _____________. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: I like when you said it wasn’t a wrist watch it’s a clock.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I just want to say, a quick note, I noticed the carpet. That was one of the things I 
was going to say.  I noticed it the other day at Mayor’s Court on Monday.  It smelled clean, it 
smelled good, it smelled fresh, and it looks fantastic. So, whoever, combination of things, it 
looks fantastic.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO:  I want you to know, I had absolutely nothing to do with this. (Laughter) 
 
MRS. OLIVER: I thought those were new chairs for a minute because of the new carpet.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: They do match.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Last but certainly not least, our City Attorney, Mr. Fortunato.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Really not report tonight.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Okay.   
 
  Under PUBLIC QUESTIONS on Reports: 
 
 
MR. TIECHE: A question for Mr. Rapp.  Do we take PFOS Samples?   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We do.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Is that in conjunction with lead and copper?  Is that a separate sample? 



5 
 

 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: It’s a whole separate item.  We have taken the samples but 
we do not have results yet.   
 
MR. TIECHE: We get results back, then do our results go to MVSD?  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We keep an open relationship with MVSD.  They will know 
what our results and we will know what their results are.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Okay, thank you.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It’s all reported to the EPA.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: That is correct.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I’m familiar with the process.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Just for everyone else’s clarification, that is who we actually report to.   
 
MR. NEFF: Those samples are costly, to have them analyzed, right John? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: At this time, the U.S. EPA is funding the samples because 
they are getting together a baseline of the maximum contaminant levels for PFOS.  We’ve been 
doing this for the past 3 years.  Every so many months, they send us boxes, we send them back.  
We should be getting results back in the next couple of months.  It takes a long time.  
 
MR. TIECHE: The MVSD is in the process of designing a new filter for PFOS and that kind of 
thing, at the plant.  They were part of a class action lawsuit as a settlement, I haven’t heard 
exactly what the numbers are yet.  I do attend their meetings on a monthly basis, so I sort of 
keep myself up to date on some of that.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We just had a meeting with them last week and all 
communities received that water were at that meeting. They let us in on all that information. 
The engineering, they started the engineering process, they said by 2025, the summer of, the 
engineering is scheduled to be complete. They have a 2029 deadline for PFOS to meet.   
 
MR. TIECHE: One of the interesting things that came about doing that study was part of the 
PFOS problems can be in the liquid that the fire service uses on chemical fires and that sort of 
thing, the Youngstown Municipal Airport changed their procedure so they’re not adding as 
much PFOS to the water system.   
 
MR. NEFF: John, one other thing, how are our residents doing with compliance on stick pick-up? 
Are we getting grass or any of the things that we’ve asked not to….. 
 



6 
 

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We’re doing really good.  No complaints.  So, anybody that 
does have something, it was minor infractions, they will be notified by the door hanger.  I think 
there has only been a couple.   
 
MR. NEFF: Thank you.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Residents, any questions on the reports that you’ve heard? Hearing none.  
 
  Under Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council: 
 
MR. JOHN MORVAY: John Morvay, 7 Willow Way.  First of all, I’ll preface by once again thanking 
members of council for serving. I’ve been there. I’ve been on that seat and I know that 
sometimes it’s a thankless job.  I just wanted to thank you before I make my comments.  
 
I’m going to start with the Cardinal Joint Fire District merger.  We’ve heard the proverb or 
saying, if it’s not broke, don’t fix it.  I don’t think we should be that shallow in our planning.  I 
sat on the Fire District Board for 15 years.  I know the finances.  I was enlightened by what they 
were trying to do with the additional revenue and economy to scale, combining those forces 
together.  It made all the sense in the world.  It seems like everyone’s self-interest was put 
before the priority, of the whole.  We lost sight of the benefit that would be acquired by 
everybody by the merger.  Not to exclude anybody but the union, the city, the township, 
nobody gave it a chance.  Again, I sat on this board for 15 years. It would have been a great 
benefit for both communities.  It would have given us additional services and we probably 
would not have had to come back for another levy.  These fire truck are not 3 to 3 ½ million 
dollars, they will be 4 million dollars here shortly, ambulances are a couple million dollars to 
equip them with the right equipment and such.  Just my comments, I think we were short sided 
on that.  We should have studied it.  Here is another saying or Proverb, We made our bed, now 
we have to lie in it. It’s not going to go.  I’ve talked to several parties and it’s not going to 
happen with any information that comes out.  I don’t’ believe that council stood together in 
that decision.  I don’t think individuals would stand together with that decision, based with 
increases in the next couple of years.   
 
Some residents are probably going to be upset with me, this is the pump track issue.  I want to 
thank Lex Calder for expanding our resources at Fair Park, similar to what we did at Greasel 
Park with the Pickleball Courts. God forbid, people are there and it’s vibrant.  Kids are there and 
enjoying it.  That’s terrible.  In the paper, there were 60 residents that are concerned about the 
noise, traffic and safety.  My grandchildren live right there. They live right at Fair Park. I’m at 
that park almost every night with them.  I’ve never had anybody disrespect or mistreat or any 
concern whatsoever about safety or hoodlums or whoever they think is going to embark on 
there.  I’d encourage before any decisions are made that people go out there and yes, there are 
football teams out there, baseball teams out there, there are kids playing on the playground.  
That’s what you want in a park.  That’s why we build parks.  If we’re not going to use them, let’s 
just close them down.  (Mr. Morvay was reading from the newspaper) An Akron Police Officer 
asked me why anyone would want to put one next to the playground. They’re talking about the 



7 
 

pump track. Again, God forbid, the kids come and use it.  It says here, kids on the playground, 
equipment, dogs walking. Yeah, it’s a neighborhood park.  Again, why do we have a park, let’s 
encourage that.  That’s what it’s for.  In that same article, Lex Calder was called out that he’s 
building a personal playground for himself and his children. I think that’s wrong. I think that’s a 
form of bullying.  It’s okay not to want the park there or the pump track there but don’t make 
personal attacks on people that put their time, effort. Lex has donated time, talent and treasure 
in building this park and encouraging this pump track. All he has asked in the past was what else 
do we need?  Do we want to put a bocce court in?  He’s throwing out ideas.  Don’t attack him 
personally.  My final comment, if we’re not going to encourage this kind of utilization and build 
where there is more usefulness to these parks, let’s just close them down.  Thank you.  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  As you know, Mr. Morvay, I have the utmost respect for you. You’re like a 
mentor to me.  You always have been.  I agree with you on using the park.  I’ll have to 
respectfully disagree in regard to the fire merger.  As you know, I sit on the board now, and 
with being on that board a very short time and sitting there with Mr. D’Apolito as well. It was 
made very clear to us that, that was going to happen whether we like it or not by a few 
individuals.  Unfortunately, the only information they ever showed us was all the pro’s of doing 
this. We all know that all things come with pro’s and con’s. Nothing can be 100% good.  There is 
going to be something that’s negative.  But they didn’t have anything negative.  They made it 
clear that they were getting it done and it was going to happen very quickly.  So, we made a 
unified decision to stop that from happening, until we had more information. Once it’s done, 
it’s done.  Then the fallout would begin, where it would affect people with things that are 
unknown at this point.  That is why we made our decision. So, they couldn’t go and just put 
something in place without anybody else knowing.  They kept us in the dark.  They still have to 
this day. They have not given us information. This committee that they say they have consisted 
of two people. I don’t know about you but I’ve never anywhere where a committee has only 
two members. So, that is why we made our decision.  I can say, we stand by that.  Those are the 
reasons.   
 
MR. NEFF: I would like to comment, I’m surprised that John, you’re saying that it’s closed.  I 
think we made the decision that, as of now, we’re against it.  We didn’t say that we wouldn’t be 
looking at additional information and facts, if they came out.  I don’t know how everyone else 
feels but I thought we just agreed to, at this point in time, with the information that we have, 
that we would be against a merger.  I thought that that Fire Board is still researching. I would 
think that our council is open and forward thinking enough, we’d review new facts, if they came 
out or when they come out.  That’s just my comment. Thanks.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: That’s exactly what I feel we all believe up here.  Any other comments?   
Anyone else wanting to speak, please state your name and address for the record.  
 
LEX CALDER:  Lex Calder, 145 Willow Bend Drive.  I’m sorry I missed the meeting last time.  I 
read about it. I saw it.  It was probably better that I wasn’t here, I guess.  I was in the woods in a 
log cabin with my family and my friend. We were in Gatlinburg for a couple of days to 
gymnastics regional finals for my son, who got a medal.  Congratulations to him.  Two things I 



8 
 

want to address, I’m not the President of the Parks Board. That was in the paper.  I’m the 
Secretary.  I took over J.T. Whitehouse’s position. Two, the personal piece was a little bit 
puzzling to me.  You guys have all been here with me the whole time.  I assure you, I did not 
join the Parks Board, I don’t volunteer at the school and the PTA.  It’s not just for my children.  
I’m not trying to improve this for my own personal use. I’m trying to improve this whole area to 
help give new amenities.  I believe that parks should be more diverse. They should attract a 
bigger slice of the population than the up to 4th grade.  There is nothing to defend here.  I don’t 
know Norma.  I’ve never met Norma. I’d love to sit down with her sometime and have her 
understand what I’m doing and where I’m coming from.  I appreciate all your support 
throughout this time. This has been by the book.  I started the idea, brought it to you guys, got 
money from the state.  I got home from Fayetteville, Tennessee.  We stopped by a park there, 
kids were playing, had some lunch. I have a 3-year-old that is 95% potty trained, so we have to 
stop a lot. My kids came running over and were so excited, they said, dad there is a bike track 
here, right next to the playground.  This is not an odd thing.  This is very normal throughout the 
country.  I’ve shown locally, all the parks within a 60 miles radius. All I’m trying to do is bring 
that culture to give new things for us to do, to give the new generation of kids that have 
opportunities through biking.  One time I was there, there was a professional biker that was 
there, he’s a cyclist around here, sponsored by a local shop, on a BMX Bike.  He said, it’s the 
first time I’ve been on my bike in 16 years because there is nowhere to ride them.  We used to 
build our own tracks with plywood, they break and you fall. He said, this is awesome to have 
this. This will get a whole new generation of kids that are into it. That’s what I’m trying to do.  I 
appreciate your support. I just wanted to put that out there for the record.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Is there anyone else desiring to speak before council? 
 
  Under OLD BUSINESS, we have none.  
 
  Under NEW BUSINESS, we have none.  
 
  Under COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Without getting into any of the issues of both of these topics; which I could 
probably include the bee but I won’t.  Nothing against the media or newspapers or anything like 
that but I think a lot of this back and forth in the papers. I’ve been to all of these meetings, 
obviously and I hear all the information from both sides so, the decisions we make here, and we 
really haven’t made any decisions, to be honest with you.  The decisions made here are by the 
facts that come into us. If people want to read the papers and slam people, that’s fine but we 
didn’t say that to you.  That’s my feeling about this.  We take the facts and we make our 
decisions on the facts. Nothing else, not hearsay, not questions that are not proven or 
complete.  That’s my comment.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  Mr. Graham. 
 



9 
 

MR. GRAHAM: Well said, Mr. Mayor.  I believe we look at the facts before a decision is made 
and I appreciate everybody’s input.  I concur with what you previously said.  A number of 
questions, if I live in the city or the township, how this was all going to be worked and to this 
point, I haven’t received that information.  Thank you.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I have no additional comments.  
 
MR. NEFF:  I would like to thank you, Lex. I think it’s really wonderful when residents step up 
and try to help our community.  We really do have a beautiful park in Fair Park, it’s 40 acres.  
Years ago, we did a study to put in a bike lane around Canfield and try to connect the schools 
and make a big circle.  I hope we can continue with that and find funding and grants.  It might 
eventually lead to a connector from the bike path.  Good job. We are always open to hear 
people’s concerns and try to react accordingly.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you, Mr. Morvay and Mr. Calder for coming out this evening.  Exactly what 
Mayor Dragish said, we make our decisions that we feel is in the best interest of our residents, 
based on the information that we have. Unfortunately, we have no information further, then 
what we already said.  That is why we have our decision the way that it is at this time.  Thank 
you, very much for coming out and expressing how you feel.  I would like to adjourn this 
meeting. Do I have a motion to adjourn?  
 
MR. DRAGISH: So, moved.  
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: This meeting is adjourned.   
 
       _______________________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Ordinance Mod 3 Basic Engineering
	Modification No. 3
	Ordinance Purchase Dump Truck, etc.
	Specifications for Truck & Plow
	Ordinance Surplus Property
	Resolution Water Tower
	Motion F permits for liquor
	Motion Dates of Council for summer
	Motion Sale of 2019 Chevrolet Tahoe
	Minutes 4-17-24



